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NET SALES

EUR million
10–12/ 

2011
7–9/ 
2011

4–6/ 
2011

1–3/ 
2011

1–12/ 
2011

10–12/ 
2010

1–12/ 
2010

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
Americas (AMER) 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.4 4.8 1.5 6.0
Asia and the Pacific (APAC) 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 1.3 0.4 1.0
Europe and rest of the world 
(EROW) 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.4 1.9 0.6 2.1
Tectia Group total 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 8.1 2.5 9.1

BY OPERATION
License sales 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 2.8 1.2 3.7
Maintenance 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 5.3 1.3 5.4
Total 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 8.1 2.5 9.1

Future outlook
General economic uncertainty can possibly still continue. This complicates company 
revenue estimation for full year 2012. For this reason at this stage the company 
doesn’t give any full year 2012 revenue estimates. The company estimates though that 
the first quarter 2012 revenue will grow compared to first quarter 2011. This estimate is 
based on earlier January released license sale to UK financial institution.

Tectia believes that it is not justified at the moment to give profitability estimates 
for year 2012 mainly due to following reasons:

Amount of R&D investment into new still under development products, starting the 
delivery and sales of the new products and demand;

In addition the macroeconomic environment increasingly complicates future out-
look estimates and reliable target setting;

Large portion of company revenue is invoiced in USD currency so possible large 
fluctuation in USD currency rates during 2012 could have unpredictable effects into 
profitability that are at the time difficult to estimate.

Global audit firm valuation experts have provided during fall time 2011 the com-
pany with a valuation estimate for some of its patents and patent applications, 
according to which the fair market value of these would be approximately EUR 1 mil-
lion. These patents were developed for the company ś IPSec-technology related 
products and are not used in current products. New applications have emerged for 
technologies described and claimed in the patents, e.g. VoIP (Voice-over-IP) and 
3GPP LTE (Long Term Extension, or 4G) networks and smart phones. It is possible 

Report of the board of directors for 1 Jan–31 Dec 2011

that the most important of the patent applications will be granted and that they will 
be essential for some of the standards in the area. It is also possible that the actual 
future sale price or other income from them would be substantially higher than the 
estimated value. The potential income will, however, most likely not be realized for 
several quarters and no asset from these patents has been booked in the balance 
sheet.

Net sales
Consolidated net sales for January-December totalled EUR 8.1 million (EUR 9.1 mil-
lion), down by 11.4% year on year.

Tectia mainly bills its jobs in USD. During the report period, the average exchange 
rate of USD to EUR strengthened by c. 5.0% compared to the same period a year ago. 
Without the change in exchange rates, net sales would have decreased by only 8.8% 
on 2010.

Change in business structure
To facilitate implementation of its strategy, Tectia set up two separate business units 
during the first quarter of 2011, reorganising sales, technical sales and customer ser-
vice. The new business units were Managed Security and Mobile Authentication until 
the end of September 2011, at which point the company merged the two units for the 
final quarter of 2011 due to changes in the company’s focus. The combining of two 
business units has no effect on segment reporting.

Profit and profitability trends
The operating loss for January–December amounted to EUR -2.0 million (-0.7 million), 
with net loss totalling EUR -2.2 million (-0.5 million). 

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses for the January-December 
reporting period amounted to EUR -5.4 million (-5.1 million), while research and devel-
opment expenses totalled EUR -2.5 million (-2.3 million) and administrative expenses 
EUR -2.0 million (-2.2 million). 

Non-recurring items for January-December amounted to EUR -1.1 million, mainly 
due to the impact of the reorganisation of sales on the channel model and changes in 
the company’s management group. Of the above costs, EUR -0.7 million is related to 
personnel reductions in Finland. Codetermination negotiations for employees in Fin-
land concluded on 27 September 2011. A further EUR -0.4 million in non-recurring 
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items was incurred through personnel reductions in the USA and Germany and 
through the closure of the German office.

Balance sheet and financial position
The financial position of Tectia remained at a healthy level during the reporting 
period. The consolidated balance sheet total on December 31, 2010 stood at EUR 6.4 
million (8.3 million), of which liquid assets accounted for EUR 2.5 million (4.0 million), 
or 39.3% percent of the balance sheet total. On 31 December 2011, gearing, or the 
ratio of net liabilities to shareholders’ equity, was -230.0% (-121.0%), and the equity 
ratio stood at 36.2% (69.1%).

Investments in tangible and intangible assets during the financial period amounted 
to EUR 0.7 million (0.1 million). The reported financial income and expenditure con-
sisted mainly of interest on fixed-term deposits and exchange rate gains and losses. 
Financial income and expenditure totalled EUR -0.1 million (-0.3 million).

Cash flow from business operations totalled EUR -0.8 million (-0.9 million), and 
cash flow from investments totalled EUR -0.7 million (-0.1 million). Cash flow from 
financing totalled EUR 2.5 million (-1.4 million). The period under review showed a 
positive cash flow of EUR 0.9 million (-2.3 million).

Research and development
Research and development expenses for January-December totalled EUR 2.5 million 
(2010: 2.3 million; 2009: 3.8 million), or 31.3% of net sales (2010: 25.2%; 2009: 43.0%).

Tectia capitalised EUR 0.6 million in development expenditure (0.0 million) during 
the period under review.

Business risks
Risk management is a part of Tectia’s internal administration. It aims to ensure that 
major risks affecting the company’s business and operating environment are identi-
fied and monitored. The company operates on the rapidly evolving information secu-
rity software market. The changes on the IT market, particularly in security software, 
thus have a direct impact on the company’s business risk. Since the United States is 
the main market area, any risks including currency risks associated with that country 
are considered to be significant. Other major risks are related to product technology, 
competitor activities and profitability. 

Sales operations are supported by the company’s own legal unit, which, through 
continuous management of contracts, seeks to reduce the risks related to the com-
pany’s business operations. Tectia protects its copyrights and trademarks through 
sales agreements. The company has also an active patent policy to protect its tech-
nology. Tectia encourages its employees to make and protect inventions. Asset, inter-
ruption and liability risks are covered with insurances.

Tectia has a process in place whereby any network security risks found in the com-
pany’s products are promptly reported to senior management. Corrections are made 
immediately and updates are supplied to customers without delay. The company’s 
critical information systems are secured. Tectia actively uses its own products to pro-
tect the information system architecture. Encryption and strong authentication pro-
tect the company’s confidential data communications.

Tectia provides no financing for its customers other than by granting normal pay-
ment terms. The company has a strong balance sheet and no significant long-term 
liabilities. Asset managers invest the company’s cash reserves in accordance with a 
policy approved by the Board of Directors. Most of Tectia’s invoicing is in US dollars. 
The company undertook hedging during the period under review to safeguard 
against exchange rate fluctuations. The company does not apply hedge accounting at 
this time, so any profits and losses from hedging are recognised in profit/loss. Receiv-
ables in foreign currencies are given in note 15 to the consolidated financial statement.

Environment
Tectia bears responsibility for the environment. Tectia’s environmental policy seeks to 
ensure the company meets statutory obligations, promotes recycling and reduces 
overall waste. The company sorts and recycles all recyclable material. 

Human resources and organisation
The Group had 52 (70) employees as at the end of December, down by 18 persons or 
25.7% on the previous year. Of the employees, 35 were based in Finland, 14 in the USA 
and 3 in Hong Kong. 

The average age of the employees was 39.4 years. 21% of the employees were 
women and 79% men. At the end of the period under review, 46% of employees 
worked in R&D, 39% in sales, marketing and customer support, and 15% in corporate 
administration.

Jari Mielonen M.Sc.(Econ.) was the CEO from January to September 2011, and Tatu 
Ylönen from October to December 2011.

As separately announced by the company on 10 February 2012, Jyrki Lalla M.Sc.
(Econ.) was appointed the new CFO of Tectia Oyj as of 1 April 2012.

At the end of the reporting period, the parent company had 35 (50) employees on 
its payroll, on average 44 (50) employees during the period under review. Parent 
company salaries and bonuses and other personnel expenses during the financial 
period totalled EUR 3.8 million (3.7 million). 
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Board and auditors
The members of the Board of Directors of Tectia Oyj elected at the Annual General 
meeting on 3 March 2011 are Juhani Harvela, Pyry Lautsuo, Juho Lipsanen, Tiia 
Tuovinen and Tatu Ylönen.

The AGM elected KPMG Oy Ab, authorised public accountants, as the company’s 
auditor, with Kirsi Jantunen, authorised public accountant, as the principal auditor.

Principal provisions of the Articles of Association
According to the Articles of Association, the highest decision-making power in the 
company is wielded by the shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting. The Annual 
General Meeting is held within six months of the completion of the company’s finan-
cial period, at a time decided by the Board. The AGM decides the number of members 
of the Board of Directors and elects them. Additionally, under the Finnish Limited Lia-
bility Companies Act, the AGM has the authority to amend the company’s Articles of 
Association, adopt the financial statements, approve the amount of dividend and 
select the company’s auditors. Each Tectia share conveys one vote at the sharehold-
er’s meeting. Under the Articles of Association, the CEO is appointed by the Board of 
Directors.

Corporate Governance
Tectia complies with NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd, and the joint recommendations of 
the NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd, the Helsinki Chamber of Commerce, and the Confed-
eration of Finnish Industries regarding corporate governance of publicly listed com-
panies. More information on corporate governance is available on the company web-
site at www.ssh.com, together with a description of the corporate governance system.

Shares, shareholding and changes in the group 
structure 
The reported trading volume of Tectia corporation shares totalled 2,287,515, valued at 
EUR 1,171,363 (2010: 4,512,942 at EUR 4,111,060). The highest and lowest quotations 
during the financial period were EUR 0.89 (1.15) and EUR 0.29 (0.76), respectively. 
The trade-weighted average share price for the period was EUR 0.51 (0.91), and the 
share closed on 30 December at EUR 0.30 (0.83). The company has one series of 
shares; each share entitles its holder to one vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

The company’s principal owner Tatu Ylönen holds 45.5% of the company’s shares 
and votes. Assetman Oy holds 13.1% and SSH Management Investment Oy holds 4.7%. 
More information about the shareholding can be obtained from the company web 
site.

Tectia corporation has the subsidiaries Tectia Inc. in the USA, Tectia Ltd in Hong 
Kong and Tectia Operations Oy and Tectia Solutions Oy in Finland. Tectia Operations 

Oy has branches in the UK and Germany. Two new Group companies were founded 
during the financial period: Tectia Solutions Oy and Tectia Licensing S.A R.L (Luxem-
bourg).

SSH Management Investment Oy is included in the Tectia Group consolidated 
financial statement pursuant to the shareholder agreement. More information on 
related party transactions concerning this arrangement is available in note 32 to the 
consolidated financial statement.

Information on Shareholders
Distribution of ownership by sector

Type of sector No. of shares
Percentage of 

shares and votes
Companies 7,615,567 24.93
Financial and insurance institutions 490,203 1.61
Public corporations 483,450 1.58
Non-profit organisations 81,550 0.27
Households and private individuals 21,817,264 71.42
Foreign shareholders 61,474 0.20
Total 30,549,208 100.00

Distribution of holdings by number of shares

Shares
No. of 

shareholders
Percentage of 
shareholders

Total no.  
of shares

Percentage  
of shares

1–100 1,978 43.89 113,043 0.37
101–500 977 21.68 302,507 0.99
501–1 000 526 11.67 454,004 1.48
1 001–5 000 773 17.15 1,930,371 6.32
5 001–10 000 133 2.95 1,029,222 3.37
10 001–50 000 95 2.11 2,080,413 6.81
50 001–100 000 10 0.22 649,516 2.13
100 001–500 000 9 0.20 1,874,285 6.14
500 001–999 999 999 6 0.13 22,115,847 72.39
Total 4,507 100 30,549,208 100.00
of which nominee-registered 6 432,679 1.42
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Top ten shareholders as at 31 Dec 2011, excluding nominee-
registered shareholders

% Shares
Ylönen Tatu 45.56 13,919,048
Assetman Oy 13.09 4,000,000
SSH Management Investment Oy 4.69 1,433,750
Kivinen Tero 3.95 1,205,640
Tilitoimisto Capital Oy 3.27 1,000,000
Siltanet Oy 1.83 558,659
Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company 1.58 483,450
Ohlsbom Janne 0.68 208,782
Oy Autocarrera Ab 0.65 200,000
Poutanen Jukka 0.49 150,000
Total 75.80 23,159,329

Nominee-registered 1.42 432,679

Share capital and board authorisations
The registered share capital of Tectia corporation as at 31 December 2011 was EUR 
916,476, divided into 30,549,208 shares.

Share subscriptions using option certificates from the company 
stock option plans in 2011 and 2010 (no. of shares):

2011 2010
I/1999 option plan class C option certificates 250 100
I/1999 class D option certificates 250 100
I/1999 class E option certificates 500
I/1999 class F option certificates 500 650
I/1999 class H option certificates 0 350
II/2003 option plan class C option certificates 0 500
II/2003 class D option certificates 0 500
TOTAL 1,000 2,700

The stock option subscriptions led to an increase of EUR 30.00 (81.00) in share capi-
tal.

The AGM approved the Board of Directors’ proposal to authorise the Board of 
Directors to decide upon the issuing of 5,500,000 shares in all, in one or more 
tranches, as share issues against payment or by giving stock options or other special 
rights entitling to shares, as defined in chapter 10 section 1 of the Finnish Limited Lia-
bility Companies Act, either in accordance with the shareholders’ pre-emptive right to 
share subscription or by derogation from this right. This authorisation is effective until 
the next AGM, though no later than 30 June 2012.

The AGM approved the Board of Directors’ proposal to authorise the Board of 
Directors to decide upon the acquiring of a maximum of 2,000,000 of the company’s 
own shares, about 6.55% of the company’s total shares, in one or more tranches, with 
assets belonging to the company’s non-restricted equity. The compensation to be 
paid for the acquired shares shall be determined on the date of acquisition on the 
basis of the trading rate determined for the company’s share in a public trading 
arranged by NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd. Furthermore, the AGM decided to authorise 
the Board of Directors to decide to accept a maximum of 1,500,000 own shares 
pledged as security, in one or more tranches. This is about 4.91% of the total shares of 
the company. The authorisation to acquire the shares and the authorisation concern-
ing the acceptance of security shall be valid at most for eighteen (18) months after 
the decision of the AGM.

Share-based payments
The share-based payments of Tectia Group are stock options granted to the manage-
ment and employees. AGMs in 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2008 decided 
to issue stock options.

Each option gives the right to subscribe to one new share at a price and at a time 
specified in the terms of the stock option plan. The option rights will be cancelled in 
case the employee leaves the company before the subscription time has begun. There 
are no other conditions to the beginning of the option rights.

The shares subscribed with the granted option rights include the rights to any divi-
dend payable for the reporting period during which the shares were subscribed. 
Other shareholder rights commence as soon as the increase in the share capital has 
been registered in the Trade Register. The stock option plan (I/1999) class C, D, E, F, 
G, and H certificates are also traded on the NASDAQ OMX Helsinki.

More information on stock option plans is given in note 22 to the consolidated 
financial statement.
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Related party transactions
Clausal Computing Oy, a company wholly owned by Tatu Ylönen, CEO of Tectia cor-
poration, has supplied Tectia corporation with R&D services worth EUR 0.1 million in 
the course of the year 2011. There were no other essential related party transactions 
during the period under review.

Events after the balance sheet date
A significant financial institution in the UK increased its investment in SSH technology 
by ordering software licenses and maintenance services for EUR 0.9 million in all. The 
software and licenses under this order will be delivered and recognised as income in 

the first quarter of 2012, and the maintenance sales will be recognised during the 2012 
financial period.

The company management does not know of any other essential events after the 
balance sheet date that would have affected the financial situation of the company.

Dividend and other distribution of assets
The Tectia Board of Directors will propose to the AGM that no dividend or return of 
capital be distributed. It is proposed that the loss for the financial period be entered 
under equity in the balance sheet.
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Financial indicators
1 Jan 2011–31 Dec 2011 1 Jan 2010–31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2009–31 Dec 2009

Net sales, EUR 8,058,571 9,099,750 8,811,906
Operating profit/loss, EUR -2,036,349 -717,676 -1,487,043

% of net sales -25.3 -7.9 -16.9
Profit/loss before taxes, EUR -2,172,958 -454,391 -198,543

% of net sales -27.0 -5.0 -2.3
Profit/loss before taxes, EUR -2,172,958 -454,391 -1,163,879

% of net sales -27.0 -5.0 -13.2
Return on equity, % -110.0 -12.8 -12.4
Return on investments, % -99.6 -10.5 -10.8
Net interest-bearing debt -2,495,335 -3,995,216 -6,385,177
Gearing, % -230.0 -121.0 -144.2
Equity ratio, % 36.2 69.1 71.4
Gross investments in tangible and intangible assets, EUR 709,944 97,800 112,643

% of net sales 8.8 1.2 1.3
Research and development costs, EUR 2,518,805 2,314,400 3,788,917

% of net sales 31.3 25.2 43.0
% of net sales (without investments) 31.3 25.2 43.0

Personnel on average 61 68 66
Personnel at the end of the period 52 70 64
Salaries and fees, EUR 5,040,780 4,890,580 5,284,238
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Indicators per share
1 Jan 2011–31 Dec 2011 1 Jan 2010–31 Dec 2010 1 Jan 2009–31 Dec 2009

Earnings per share, EUR -0.07 -0.02 -0.04
Earnings per share, considering dilution effect, EUR -0.07 -0.02 -0.04
Equity per share, EUR 0.03 0.10 0.15
Dividends, EUR 0 - 0
Dividends per share, EUR 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dividend pay-out ratio, % - - -
Effective dividend yield, % 0.0 0.0 0.0
Return of capital, EUR 0.0 1,494,922 8,595,680
Return of capital per share, EUR 0.00 0.05 0.30
Adjusted average number of shares during the period, 1,000 30,549 29,900 28,791
Adjusted average number of shares at the end of period, 1,000* 30,549 30,548 29,898
Adjusted average number of shares considering dilution effect, 1,000 30,563 29,922 29,919
Price per earnings ratio (P/E) -4.2 -52.1 -18.9
Market capitalisation at the end of the period, EUR million 9.2 24.8 23.0

Share performance on the Helsinki Exchanges, EUR
Average price 0.51 0.91 0.79
Share price, year-end 0.30 0.83 0.77
Lowest quotation 0.29 0.76 0.65
Highest quotation 0.89 1.15 1.24

Volume of shares traded, millions 2.3 4.5 5.1

Volume of shares traded, % of total number 7.5 15.1 17.0
Volume of shares traded, EUR million 1.2 4.1 4.0

* This figure includes the shares transferred to Siltanet Oy, which may be further transferred in 2011.
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Calculation of financial ratios

Return on Equity, % (ROE)
Profit/loss for the financial period

x 100
Equity (average during the financial period)

Return on investment, % (ROI)
Profit/loss before taxes + interest and other financial costs

x 100
Balance sheet total – non-interest bearing debts (average during the financial period)

Equity ratio, %
Equity

x 100
Balance sheet total – advance payments received

Earnings per share (EPS)
Profit/loss for the financial period

Average number of outstanding shares during the financial period

Dividend per share
Dividend

Number of outstanding shares during the financial period

Dividend pay-out ratio %
Dividend per share

x 100
Earnings per share

Equity per share
Equity

Number of outstanding shares on the financial statement date, adjusted for share issue

Gearing %
Interest – bearing debt – liquid assets

x 100
Equity
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Consolidated financial statement
Consolidated comprehensive income statement

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT

EUR Note* 1 Jan – 31 Dec 2011 1 Jan – 31 Dec 2010

NET SALES 4 8,058,572 9,099,750
Cost of goods sold 139,772 216,401
GROSS MARGIN 7,918,800 8,883,349

Other operating income 5 1,536 48,392
Sales and marketing costs 6, 7 5,418,678 5,137,991
R&D costs 6, 7 2,518,805 2,314,400
Administrative costs 6, 7 2,019,202 2,197,036
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS -2,036,349 -717,676

Financing income and costs 71 154 301 178
Other interest and financial income 207 815 37 883
Other interest and financial costs -2 173 010 -454 391
Financial income 8 71,154 301,178
Financial costs 9 207,815 37,883
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES -2,173,010 -454,391

Income tax 10 21,234 22,001
PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD -2,194,244 -476,392

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/COSTS -2 121 074 -733 452
Translation differences 73,170 -257,060

-2 177 230 -460 966
COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD -2,121,074 -733,452 
Profit/loss for the financial period attributable to
equity holders of the parent company -2,177,230 -460,966
non-controlling interest -17,014 -15,426

-17 014 -15 426
Comprehensive profit/loss for the financial period attributable to:
equity holders of the parent company -2,104,060 -718,026
non-controlling interest 1) -17,014 -15,426
Earnings per share (undiluted) 11 -0.07 -0.02 
Earnings per share (diluted) 11 -0.07 -0.02

1) The portion of the profit/loss and comprehensive profit/loss attributed to non-controlling interest is attributed to SSH Management Investment Oy.

* The notes constitute an essential part of the financial statement.
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Consolidated balance sheet

BALANCE SHEET

EUR Note* 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Tangible assets 12

Machinery & equipment 141,367 165,042
Other tangible assets 1,090 1,957

Tangible assets, total 142,457 166,999

Intangible assets 13
Immaterial rights 1,302,701 840,981

Intangible assets, total 1,302,701 840,981

Investments
Other shares 14,467 11,000

Investments total 14,467 11,000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL 1,459,626 1 018,980

CURRENT ASSETS
Short-term receivables

Accounts receivable 15 2,090,774 2,804,244
Other receivables 16 332,557 439,577
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 17 59,826 43,051

Current receivables, total 2,483,157 3,286,872

Investments
Investments held to maturity 18 2,452,744

Investments total 2,452,744
   
Cash and cash equivalents 2,414,681 1,495,684

 
CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL 4,897,838 7,235,300

  
ASSETS, TOTAL 6,357,464 8,254,280

* The notes constitute an essential part of the financial statement.
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BALANCE SHEET

EUR Liitetieto* 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS
Share capital 916,476 916,446
Fair value and other reserves 151,682 139,150
Translation differences -1,181,095 -1,254,265
Unrestricted invested equity fund 4,429,472 4,429,472
Other equity fund 85,000 85,000
Fund for own shares -980,240 -980,240
Retained earnings -2,576,725 -399,496

844,570 2,936,068
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Non-controlling interest 1) 234,200 251,214

EQUITY, TOTAL 20 1,078,770 3,187,281

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities 14 0 730
Financial liabilities 23 121,652 17,632
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES, TOTAL 121,652 18,362

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances received 24 3,373,604 3,634,385
Accounts payable 25 496,253 213,044
Accrued expenses and deferred income 26 1,054,035 956,301
Other liabilities 23,27 233,149 244,907
CURRENT LIABILITIES, TOTAL 5,157,041 5,048,637

 
LIABILITIES, TOTAL 5,276,003 5,066,999

 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES, TOTAL 6,357,464 8,254,280

1) The portion attributed to non-controlling interest consists of the holding of SSH Management Investment Oy in Tectia corporation.

* The notes constitute an essential part of the financial statement.
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Consolidated cash flow statement

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EUR Note* 1 Jan–31 Dec 2011 1 Jan–31 Dec 2010

Cash flow from business operations
Sales revenue 4,15,25 8,623,700 9,097,236
Revenue from other business operations 1,536 48,392
Costs of business operations 6,7,23,26,27,28 -9,348,864 -10,070,500
Interest and payments on other financial costs of business operations -117,049 -33,142
Interest and other financial revenue from business operations 6,401 35,171
Taxes paid -5,604 -27,536
Cash flow from business operations -839,880 -950,380

Cash flow from investing activities
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 12,13 -693,897 -147,800
Other investments 0 0
Proceeds from sale of investments 19 0 0
Interest revenue from investments 55,707
Cash flow from investing activities -693,897 -92,093

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term financial investments 2,452,744 67,356
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 30 81
Return of capital 1) 20 -1,423,235
Cash flow from financing activities 2,452,744 -1,355,798

Change in liquid assets 918,997 -2,398,271

Liquid assets at beginning of period 19 1,495,684 3,905,791
Exchange rate adjustment -11,836
Change in liquid assets 918,997 -2,398,271
Liquid assets at end of period 19 2,414,681 1,495,684

1) Return of capital to SSH Management Investment Oy eliminated from this figure.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUITY

 Equity attributable to the parent company shareholders

Note
Share  

capital
Other  

equity fund

Fair value 
and other 

reserves
Translation 
differences

Unrestricted 
invested 

equity fund
Fund for  

own shares
Retained 
earnings

Non-
controlling 

interest Equity total

Equity as at 1 Jan 2010 896,953 125,574 -997,205 5,393,806 -1,051,927 61,471 4,428,672

Comprehensive profit/loss

Profit/loss for the period -460,966 -15,426 -476,392

Other comprehensive items

Translation differences  , , , -257,060 , , , , -257,060

Comprehensive profit/loss for the financial period, total -257,060 -460,966 -15,426 -733,452

Transactions with shareholders

Shares subscribed on option rights 81 81

Siltanet Oy, sale of business 19,412 85,000 530,588 635,000

Return of capital -1,494,922 71,688 -1,423,235

SSH Management Investment Oy  , 13,576 , , , , , 266,640 280,216

Transactions with shareholders, total  19,493 13,576 85,000 , -964,334 71,688 , 266,640 -507,938

Equity as at 31 Dec 2010 916,446 139,150 85,000 -1,254,265 4,429,472 -980,240 -399,496 251,214 3,187,282

Equity as at 1 Jan 2011 916,446 139,150 85,000 -1 254,265 4,429,472 -980,240 -399,496 251,214 3,187,282

Comprehensive profit/loss

Profit/loss for the period -2,177,230 -17,014 -2,194,244

Other comprehensive items

Translation differences    73,170     73,170

Comprehensive profit/loss for the financial period, total 0 0 0 73,170 0 0 -2,177,230 -17,014 -2,121,287

Transactions with shareholders

Shares subscribed on option rights 20 30 30

Return of capital 0

SSH Management Investment Oy  12,532       12,532

Transactions with shareholders, total 30 12,532 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,562

Equity as at 31 Dec 2011 916,476 151,682 85,000 -1,181,095 4,429,472 -980,240 -2,576,725 234,200 1,078,770

* Elimination of shares held by SSH Management Investment Oy and entry as a stock option cost. 
The equity of the company is shown as the non-controlling interest. More information on the company is given in note 32 to the consolidated financial statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
2 Accounting principles

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statement has been prepared 
in compliance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) including the International Accounting 
Standard (IAS) and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as well as the interpretations by 
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 
(IFRIC) in force as at 31 December 2011. The aforemen-
tioned standards are the standards and interpretations 
thereof approved for use in the EU pursuant to Regula-
tion (EC) No. 1606/2002 implemented in the Finnish 
Accounting Act and legislation based thereon. The 
notes to the consolidated financial statement are also 
compliant with Finnish accounting and company legisla-
tion.

The consolidated financial statement is based on 
original acquisition costs unless otherwise noted in the 
accounting principles. The consolidated financial state-
ment is presented in full euros unless otherwise stated.

In November 2009, the Management Group and CEO 
of the Group set up a company named SSH Manage-
ment Investment Oy (SMI), through which the manage-
ment incentive scheme has been implemented. The 
company owns 1,433,750 shares in the parent company. 
This arrangement is explained in more detail under note 
32 ‘Group companies and related party transactions’ to 
the consolidated financial statement. The parent com-
pany holds a controlling interest in SSH Management 
Investment Oy pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
the shareholders’ agreement, and accordingly the com-
pany is incorporated in the consolidated financial state-
ment. The shares in the parent company held by SSH 
Management Investment Oy are deducted from the 
Group’s unrestricted equity. The deduction from equity 

1 General information
Tectia corporation (formerly SSH Communications 
Security) is a provider of real-time security software 
solutions for modern, networked organisations. Tectia 
solutions facilitate and support the business operations 
of thousands of customers in various areas in the public 
and private sectors. We provide our customers with the 
fastest way of securing and strengthening their tele-
communications system and its nodes. Our strength is 
the ability to provide the fastest track for our customers 
to securing, automating, managing and sharing data-in-
transit in cross platform environments without expen-
sive and time-consuming solutions and interruption to 
business. Tectia solutions are sold as licensed software 
with maintenance and support agreements. 

The Tectia Group consists of Tectia corporation and 
its wholly owned subsidiaries. Tectia corporation is 
domiciled in Helsinki, Finland and is a publicly traded 
company. The subsidiaries of Tectia are Tectia Inc. 
(USA), SSH Management Investment Oy, Tectia Ltd. 
(Hong Kong), Tectia Solutions Oy and Tectia Licensing 
S.A R.L., and Tectia Operations Oy, which has opera-
tions in Finland, the UK and Germany. Tectia corpora-
tion has its registered office at address Kumpulantie 3, 
00520 Helsinki, Finland.

The Tectia Board of Directors approved this financial 
statement for publication at its meeting on 14 February 
2012. Under the Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act, 
the shareholders can accept or reject the financial state-
ment at the AGM held after its publication. The AGM is 
also entitled to alter the financial statement. A copy of 
the financial statements is published as a part of the 
company’s annual report. The annual report is available 
on the company website ( HYPERLINK “www.tectia.
com” www.tectia.com) or at the head office of Tectia 
corporation. All stock exchange bulletins are available 
on the company website. 

is recognised under the fund for own shares. The invest-
ments made in the company by the shareholders of SSH 
Management Investment Oy are recognised as non-
controlling interest in the consolidated balance sheet.

Subsidiaries
The consolidated accounts include the parent company 
Tectia corporation and all its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries 
are companies in which the Group has a controlling 
interest. A controlling interest is created when the 
Group owns more than half of the votes in a company or 
the Group otherwise exercises control over a company. 
Potential voting powers are also taken into account 
when evaluating a controlling interest if the instruments 
in which the potential voting powers are vested are real-
isable at the time of analysis. A controlling interest 
means having the right to issue orders concerning a 
company’s finances and business principles in order to 
benefit from its operations. 

Group-internal share ownership is eliminated using 
the purchase method. Subsidiaries are consolidated 
from the date on which control is transferred to the 
Group and are no longer consolidated from the date on 
which that control ceases. All Group-internal transac-
tions, receivables and debts, unrealised profit, and profit 
distribution have been eliminated.

Converting foreign currency 
transactions
Items of each subsidiary included in the consolidated 
financial statements are measured using the currency of 
the operating environment of that subsidiary (‘func-
tional currency’). The consolidated financial statements 
are presented in euros, which is the functional and 
reporting currency of the parent company. 
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Transactions in foreign currency
Foreign currency denominated transactions are recog-
nised at the exchange rate of the functional currency on 
the transaction date. In practice, the exchange rate used 
is approximately the rate of the transaction date. Out-
standing receivables and liabilities in foreign currencies 
are measured using the exchange rates on the balance 
sheet date. Exchange rate gains and losses on actual 
business operations are treated as adjustment items of 
sales costs or purchase and production costs above the 
operating profit. Exchange rate gains and losses on 
financing are included in financing income and costs.

Translation of financial statements of foreign 
subsidiaries
The comprehensive income statements of subsidiaries 
whose functional currency is other than EUR are trans-
lated into euros using the exchange rate of the transac-
tion dates. In practice, the translations are done once a 
month using the monthly average exchange rate. Bal-
ance sheet items are translated into euros with the 
exchange rate of the balance sheet date. The translation 
of the comprehensive profit/loss for the financial period 
using different exchange rates in the comprehensive 
income statement on the one hand and in the balance 
sheet on the other causes a translation difference rec-
ognised under Group equity under other comprehensive 
profit/loss items. Translation differences generated 
through elimination of the acquisition costs of foreign 
subsidiaries and translation of equity items accrued 
after acquisition are recognised under other compre-
hensive profit/loss items. When a subsidiary is sold, 
accumulated translation differences are recognised in 
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on the 
sale. 

Revenue recognition
Tectia net sales derive mainly from software license 
sales and maintenance fees. Net sales comprise the 
invoiced value for the sale of goods and services 

adjusted with any discounts given, sales taxes, and 
exchange rate differences.

The revenue from product sales is recognised at the 
time when significant risks and rewards of the product 
or the right of use of the product have been transferred 
to the buyer and there is a binding contract between 
the parties, the delivery has taken place in accordance 
with the contract, the amount of revenue can be mea-
sured reliably and it is probable that the economic ben-
efits associated with the transaction will accrue to the 
company.

Maintenance agreements are recognised evenly on 
an accrual basis throughout the contract period. Rev-
enues from services are recognised when the service 
has been delivered and it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will accrue to 
the company.

Government grants
Government grants, for example grants received from 
the government for a purchase of tangible assets, are 
entered as a deduction of the book value of the asset 
when there is reasonable assurance that the company 
will receive the grant and will comply with the condi-
tions attaching to the grant. Grants are recognised as 
income over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a 
reduced depreciation. Government grants that are 
intended to compensate costs are recognised as income 
over the same period as the related costs are recog-
nised. These government grants are presented under 
other operating income. The company has a R&D capital 
loan from TEKES which was transferred as part of the 
Siltanet business operations transaction in 2010. This 
loan is not of a significant magnitude.

Property, plant and equipment
The property, plant and equipment of Group companies 
are measured in the balance sheet at cost less accumu-
lated straight-line depreciation and eventual impairment 
losses. When a part of a current assets item is treated as 

a separate asset, expenses related to its replacement 
are capitalised and any remaining book value is written 
off. Expenses incurring at a later date are included in the 
class of property, plant and equipment only if it is prob-
able that the property will provide future economic ben-
efits to the Group and that the acquisition cost can be 
reliably determined. Other repair and maintenance 
expenses are recognised in profit/loss as and when 
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to 
reduce the purchase value of each asset item to its 
residual value over its estimated useful life.

Machinery and equipment: 5 years from month of 
acquisition.

Computer hardware: 3 years from month of acquisi-
tion.

Leased assets based on finance leasing agreements: 
3–5 years from month of acquisition, depending on the 
depreciation period for corresponding items.

Major renovations of rental premises: According to 
length of the rental agreement, though no more than 7 
years from year of acquisition.

The residual value and useful life of assets are 
reviewed for each financial statement and, if necessary, 
adjusted to indicate changes expected in the assets’ 
economic benefits.

The depreciation on property, plant and equipment is 
ceased when the asset is classified as held for sale in 
accordance with standard IFRS 5 Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Capital gains and losses are determined by compar-
ing proceeds received with the book value of sold 
assets. Impairment losses incurred through transfer are 
recognised under other operating costs.

Intangible assets
Research and development costs
Research costs are recognised as costs in the income 
statement. Development costs (related to the design 
and testing of new or improved products) are recog-
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nised as intangible assets if capitalisation criteria are 
fulfilled and if it is probable that their economic benefits 
will accrue to the company pursuant to IAS 38. The 
most significant development costs to be capitalised 
constitute R&D personnel costs and sub-contracting 
costs. Other development costs are recognised directly 
as costs. Development costs once recognised as costs 
are not capitalised in subsequent financial periods. 

Depreciation begins when an asset is ready for use. 
Incomplete assets are tested annually for impairment. 
After initial recognition, capitalised development costs 
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Capitalised development costs are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their economic 
lifetime, estimated at 3–5 years.

Software
Software includes acquired software licenses. These 
assets are entered in the balance sheet at cost and 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their economic 
lifetime. The residual value and useful life of assets are 
reviewed for each financial statement and, if necessary, 
adjusted to indicate changes expected in the assets’ 
economic benefits. The economic lifetime does not gen-
erally exceed 5 years. The depreciation period for soft-
ware acquired for internal use is 3–5 years. 

Other immaterial rights
Immaterial rights include technology patents obtained, 
trademarks, customer registers and technology rights. 
These are entered in the balance sheet at cost and 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their economic 
lifetime. The residual value and useful life of assets are 
reviewed for each financial statement and, if necessary, 
adjusted to indicate changes expected in the assets’ 
economic benefits. The economic lifetime does not gen-
erally exceed 5 years. 

Impairment of tangible and 
intangible assets
The Group will review on each balance sheet date 
whether there is any indication of an impaired asset. 
Whenever indicators of impairment exist, the book value 
of such an asset is compared with its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the fair value of the 
asset less the costs of its sale, or its value in use, which-
ever is the higher. The value in use is the present value 
of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an 
asset or cash-generating unit. The discount rate used to 
calculate the above is pre-tax rate that reflects the cur-
rent market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. 

Whenever the book value of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss will be recog-
nised for that asset. The impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in the income statement. After the recogni-
tion of an impairment loss, the economic lifetime of an 
asset subject to depreciation is re-evaluated. An impair-
ment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other 
than goodwill will be reversed if there is a change in the 
estimates that have been used in assessing the recover-
able amount of that asset.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
The Group has classified its financial assets into the fol-
lowing categories: investments held to maturity; and 
loans and receivables. The assets are classified when 
originally acquired. The assets are initially recognised at 
fair value. Transaction costs are included in the original 
book value of an asset if the asset is not to be recog-
nised at fair value in profit/loss. Financial assets are 
written off from the balance sheet when the contractual 
right to cash flows from an asset included in financial 
assets ends or when the significant risks and rewards 
related to the asset are transferred outside the Group. 
All asset purchases and sales are recognised on the date 
of the transaction.

Investments held to maturity are financial assets 
other than derivative assets whose payments are made 
according to a fixed plan, which mature on a defined 
date and which the Group can and intends to keep until 
they mature. These are measured at amortised acquisi-
tion cost and recognised under current assets.

Loans and other receivables are assets other than 
derivative assets and with a fixed or definite series of 
payments. These assets are unlisted and not held for 
trading. They are measured at amortised acquisition 
cost. They are recognised under current or non-current 
financial assets in the balance sheet depending on their 
nature: assets expiring in more than 12 months are rec-
ognised under non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances, short-
term deposits with banks and other short-term liquid 
investments with maturity up to 3 months at the time of 
acquisition. 

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether 
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. If there is, the 
impairment will immediately be entered in the income 
statement. If an impairment on an interest instrument is 
later reversed, this will be recognised in profit/loss.

The Group recognises an impairment loss on trade 
receivables when there is objective evidence that a 
receivable is not fully collectible. Significant financial 
difficulties, likelihood of bankruptcy, neglect of pay-
ments or delay of payment by more than 90 days on 
part of a debtor may be considered to constitute such 
evidence for an impairment loss on trade receivables. 
The impairment loss recognised in the income state-
ment is the difference between the book value and cur-
rent value of estimated future cash flows of a receivable 
discounted at the effective interest rate. If impairment 
loss is decreased during any later period and the basis 
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for this can objectively be related to an event occurred 
after the original impairment, the reversal will be recog-
nised in profit/loss in the income statement.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into financ-
ing liabilities recognised at fair value in profit/loss and 
other financial liabilities (financing liabilities recognised 
at amortised acquisition cost). A financial liability is clas-
sified as current if the Group does not have the absolute 
right to postpone repayment to at least 12 months from 
the end of the period under review. A financial liability 
(or part thereof) will not be written off the balance 
sheet until it has ceased to exist, i.e. when the obligation 
specified in the agreement has been discharged or 
reversed and its period of validity has expired.

In the Tectia Group, Financial liabilities recognised at 
fair value in profit/loss includes the derivative instru-
ments which do not fulfil the criteria for hedging 
accounting and which are not warrants (currency deriv-
atives). Unrealised and realised profits/losses due to 
changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recog-
nised in profit/loss in the financial period during which 
they are generated.

Other financial liabilities (financing liabilities recog-
nised at amortised cost) include, most significantly, the 
Group’s finance leasing liabilities and accounts payable. 
They are initially recognised at fair value. After the origi-
nal recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised acquisition cost using the effective interest 
rate method.

Leases
Lease liabilities on tangible assets which expose the 
Group to significant risks and rewards inherent in hold-
ing such assets are classified as finance leases. Finance 
leasing agreements are capitalised at the beginning of 
the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or the cur-
rent value of the minimum lease payments, whichever is 
lower. An asset based on a finance leasing agreement 

will be depreciated over its useful life or within the lease 
term, whichever is shorter. Lease payments are appor-
tioned between the finance charge and repayment on 
the outstanding liability over the lease period so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Rental obligations are 
included in interest-bearing liabilities. 

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are clas-
sified as other operating leases. Payments made under 
operating leases, included in other operating expenses, 
are recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. 

Earnings per share
The undiluted earnings per share is calculated by divid-
ing the net profit/loss for the financial year by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstand-
ing during the financial year. Treasury shares held by the 
Group are not included in the number of outstanding 
shares. A dilutive effect caused by stock options exists 
when the subscription price of a share is lower than the 
fair value of the share. In the calculation of diluted earn-
ings per share, stock options are only considered dilu-
tive when their conversion to ordinary shares would 
decrease earnings per share or increase the loss per 
share from continuing operations. In other words, when 
the Group declares a loss, no dilutive effect will be cal-
culated.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are presented as share capital. Divi-
dends paid on ordinary shares are deducted from equity 
in the period during which the decision to distribute 
dividends is made.

Share issue costs
Costs directly related to an issue of new shares, other 
than costs attributable to a business combination, are 
deducted, net of tax, from the proceeds recognised 

under equity. Share issue costs directly attributable to 
business combinations are included in acquisition costs. 

Own shares
If Tectia corporation or its subsidiaries purchases Tectia 
shares, the compensation paid, including any related 
incremental external costs, net of tax, is deducted from 
total equity as own shares until the shares are cancelled 
or transferred. If own shares are subsequently sold, any 
compensation received will be recognised under equity.

Gross margin
Gross margin is equal to net sales less the acquisition 
costs of materials and services.

Operating profit/loss
Operating profit/loss is equal to earnings before interest 
and taxes.

Income tax 
Tax expenses in the income statement comprise tax 
based on taxable income for the period and deferred 
tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement 
except for taxes related to items recognised under com-
prehensive profit/loss or directly under equity, in which 
case the tax impact will be incorporated in the afore-
mentioned items. Tax based on taxable income for the 
period is calculated using the corporate income tax rate 
effective in each country, adjusted for any tax from pre-
vious periods. 

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differ-
ences between the book value and taxable value. The 
largest temporary differences arise from the financial 
leasing agreements and unused tax losses which are 
deductible at a later date.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the statutory tax 
bases or the tax bases whose confirmed content has 
been announced by the closing date. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable income against which the temporary differ-
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ence can be applied will materialise in the future. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised at full value in the 
balance sheet.

Employee benefits
Pensions
The Group’s pension schemes comply with the relevant 
regulations and practices in each relevant country. Pen-
sion security for Group personnel is handled through 
external pension insurance companies. The Group 
applies defined-contribution pension plans, in which the 
Group pays fixed contributions to an outside unit. The 
Group has no obligation to make additional payments in 
case the recipient of the aforementioned contributions 
cannot discharge its pension payment obligations. Con-
tributions under the defined-contribution plan are rec-
ognised in the income statement for the financial period 
during which the contributions were made. 

Equity-based benefits
Option rights have been issued to the Group manage-
ment (excluding the CEO) and personnel. Option rights 
are issued with a fixed subscription price determined in 
the terms and conditions of the option plan. 

Option rights are measured at fair value on their date 
of issue and recognised as a cost in the income state-
ment on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. 
The expense determined at the time of issuing the stock 
options is based on the Group’s estimate of the number 
of stock options to which it is assumed that rights will 
vest by the end of the vesting period. The fair value is 
determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The 
non-market criteria are not included in the fair value of 
the option but taken into account in the number of 
stock options that are assumed to vest at the end of the 
vesting period. On the date of each financial statement, 
the Group updates its estimate of the final amount of 
the stock options that will vest, and changes in this esti-
mate are recognised in the income statement. When the 
option rights are exercised, the proceeds received, net 

of any transaction costs, are recognised under share 
capital and the share premium account.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, when it is probable that expenditure will be 
required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount can be made. If the Group 
expects an obligation to be partly reimbursed by a third 
party, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate 
asset but only when the reimbursement is certain in 
practical terms. The Group recognises a provision on 
loss-making agreements when the expected benefits of 
an agreement are less than the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under the agreement. 

Provisions are measured at the current value of the 
costs required to discharge the obligation. The discount 
rate is determined to reflect current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
obligation.

New or amended IFRS standards
The following standards, interpretations and amend-
ments that entered into force during the 2011 financial 
period did not have a substantial impact on the Group’s 
financial statement:
•	 Revised IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The defini-

tion of a related party is clarified, and certain disclo-
sure requirements for government-related entities are 
changed.

•	 Improvements to IFRS standards, May 2010. The 
Annual improvements procedure gathers all minor 
and less urgent amendments into one collection 
implemented once a year. The amendments concern 
seven standards and vary by standard.

No other standards, interpretations and amendments 
that entered into force during the 2011 financial period 

had a substantial impact on the Group’s financial state-
ment.

The following published new or amended standards 
and interpretations have not yet been applied by Tectia. 
The Group will introduce these as of the effective date 
of each standard or interpretation or, if the effective 
date is not the first day of the financial period, from the 
beginning of the financial period following the effective 
date. These amendments are not expected to have a 
substantial impact on the Group’s financial statement:

* = This amendment has not yet been accepted for 
application in the EU.

•	 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclo-
sures (effective for financial periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2011): Enhancing disclosures about trans-
fers of financial assets, disclosures about fair value 
and liquidity risk and their impact on a company’s 
financial position, especially in the case of securitisa-
tion of financial assets.

•	 Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes *(effective for 
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2012): Underlying assumptions in the recognition of 
deferred taxes. According to these amendments, the 
book value of certain items measured at fair value, 
such as investment real estate, will in the future be 
expected to be based on asset sales instead of con-
tinuing use.

•	 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial State-
ments *(effective for financial periods beginning on 
or after 1 July 2012): The key change here is the 
requirement to revise the way items under other 
comprehensive income are presented depending on 
whether they may later be recognised in profit/loss if 
certain criteria are fulfilled.

•	 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits *(effective 
for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2013): In the future, all actuarial gains and losses will 
be recognised immediately under other items in the 
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comprehensive income statement, i.e. the ‘pipe 
method’ will be abandoned and the financing cost 
will be determined on an offset basis.

•	 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements *(effective 
for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2013): In accordance with current principles, IFRS 10 
defines controlling interest as the key factor for 
deciding whether to incorporate a company in the 
consolidated financial statement. The standard also 
provides further instructions on how to determine a 
controlling interest in situations where it is difficult to 
estimate.

•	 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
(effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2013): IFRS 12 is a compilation of the require-
ments for information to be presented in financial 
statements. These have to do with holdings in other 
entities, including associated companies, joint ven-
tures, structured units and other off-balance-sheet 
entities.

•	 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement *(effective for finan-
cial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013): 
IFRS 13 is a compilation of the requirements for mea-
suring fair value and for presenting related informa-
tion in financial statements, together with a new defi-
nition of ‘fair value’. The application of fair value is 
not extended, but the standard provides instructions 
on how to determine fair value when it is applicable 
or required under another standard.

•	 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclo-
sures (effective for financial periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2013): The revised standard requires 
disclosure of any information related to the impact of 
offsetting arrangements in the balance sheet. The 
notes required by these amendments must be pre-
sented retroactively.

•	 Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Statements: Presen-
tation *(effective for financial periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2014): These amendments clarify the 
requirements pursuant to regulation of offsetting 

financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. 
The amended standard must be applied retroactively.

•	 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments* and amendments 
thereto (the IASB has deferred the effective date 
from 1 January 2013 to 1 January 2015): The new 
standard is intended to replace the existing IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
and will be published in three stages. Amendments in 
the first stage have to do with the classification, rec-
ognition and measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities. Different measurement methods are 
retained but they have been simplified. Financial 
assets are divided into two classifications based on 
their measurement: financial assets measured at 
amortised cost and financial assets measured at fair 
value. The classification depends on the company’s 
business model and the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Regarding financial liabilities, the majority 
of the provisions of IAS 19 have been incorporated in 
the new standard without changes.

Other standards, interpretations and amendments pub-
lished are not estimated to have an impact on the 
Group’s consolidated financial statement. 

Management judgment in applying 
the most significant accounting 
policies and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty
When preparing the financial statement, the Group 
management has to make estimates and assumptions 
influencing the content of the financial statement. The 
management must also exercise its judgment regarding 
the application of accounting policies. These estimates 
are based on the management’s best knowledge of cur-
rent events and actions at the time. Potential effects of 
changes in estimates and assumptions are recorded in 
the income statement and balance sheet for the finan-
cial period during which these estimates and assump-

tions are adjusted, and also in all subsequent financial 
periods.

The most important of these estimates and assump-
tions are related to business combinations, the credit 
risk of trade receivables and the utilisation of deferred 
tax assets. 

3 Segment information
The Group has three segments which are reported as 
operating segments. These segments are defined as 
geographical areas. They are based on the Group’s 
internal structure and internal financial reporting. The 
company’s highest operative executive is the CEO. 
Assessing the profitability of these segments is mainly 
based on operating profit/loss and gross margin. The 
nature of the market and its risks are different in each 
segment. 

Segment assets are items which are used by the seg-
ment in its business or which can be allocated to the 
segment. Unallocated items include items shared by the 
Group. 

The Group’s operating segments are:
•	 North and South America (AMERICAS),
•	 Europe and Rest of World (EROW), and
•	 Asia and the Pacific (APAC).

The Tectia group operates globally with the same oper-
ating model, so that products and services are delivered 
same way in all operating segments. 

Geographical distribution of net sales:
Region 2011 2010

Finland 351,303 472,366

EROW (excl. Finland) 1,579,671 1,673,627

AMERICAS 4,812,710 5,995,386

APAC 1,314,888 958,372

TOTAL 8,058,572 9,099,750
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INCOME STATEMENT

2011 EROW AMERICAS APAC Unallocated costs Group total

NET SALES 1,930,974 4,812,710 1,314,888 8,058,572
Cost of goods sold -139,772 -139,772
GROSS MARGIN 1,791,202 4,812,710 1,314,888 7,918,800

Other operating income 1,536
Segment costs and depreciations -833,198 -2,797,994 -498,240 -5,827,252 -9,956,685
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS 958,003 2,014,716 816,647 -5827,252 -2,036,349

Financial income 71,154
Financial costs -207,815
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES -2,172,958

Income tax -21,234

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD -2,194,244

Segment assets 512,981 1,846,362 417,727 3,580,394 6,357,464

INCOME STATEMENTw

2010 EROW AMERICAS APAC Unallocated costs Group total

NET SALES 2,145,993 5,995,386 958,372 9,099,750
Cost of goods sold -198,656 -1,838 -15,907 -216,401
GROSS MARGIN 1,947,336 5,993,548 942,465 8,883,611

Other operating income 0 0 41 48,351 48,392
Segment costs and depreciations -1475,777 -2,549,026 -496,500 -5,128,113 -9,649,416
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS 471,560 3,444,521 446,006 -5,079,763 -717,686

Financial income 301,178
Financial costs -37,883
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES -454,391

Income tax -22,001

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD -476,392

Segment assets 1,579,341 2,045,342 517,143 4,112,455 8,254,280

* Group-level costs consist mainly of Group R&D and Group administration costs.
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4 Net sales, EUR

2011 2010
Income from license sales 2,738,064 3,642,305
Income from maintenance 5,272,267 5,364,642
Other income 48,239 92,803
Total 8,058,572 9,099,750

5 Other operating income, EUR

2011 2010
Rental income 0 42,292
Other 1,536 6,100
Total 1,536 48,392

6 Other operating costs

Employee benefits, EUR 2011 2010
Wages and salaries 5,028,248 4,877,003
Pensions, defined-contribution plan 502,896 561,548
Other ancillary personnel costs 257,528 171,918
Stock options issued 12,532 13,576
Total 5,801,204 5,624,046

Personnel 2011 2010
Average during the financial period 61 68
At the end of the financial period 52 70

Personnel distribution by business 
area on 31 Dec 2011 2010
Sales, marketing and customer ser-
vice 22 30
Research and development 24 27
Administration 8 13
Total 52 70

Research and development costs 
recognised as costs 2011 2010
Total 2,518,805 2,314,400

Other operating costs 2011 2010
Total 2,034,625 4,025,381

Auditor’s fees
Auditor’s fees by service category in 2011 were as fol-
lows:
•	 Audit: Group KPMG EUR 18,000 (18,000), Cheng 

EUR 6,341 (0), parent company EUR 18,000 (18,000).
•	 Tax counselling: Group EUR 38,596 (27,323), parent 

company EUR 10,553 (0).
•	 Other services: Group EUR 7,326 (3,670), parent 

company EUR 7,326 (3,670).

7 Depreciations by asset 
category, EUR

2011 2010
On machinery and equipment 33,243 68,167
On financial leasing assets 49,182 82,144
On other tangible assets 865 878
On software 182,093 11,874
On capitalised development costs 45,791 0
Total 311,175 163,062

Depreciations by function, EUR 2011 2010
Sales and marketing costs 179,623 36,496
R&D costs 49,001 17,891
Administrative costs 82,550 108,675
Total 311,175 163,062

Tectia recognised no impairments in 2010 or 2011.

8 Financial income, EUR

2011 2010
Interest revenue 48,178 12,556
Capital gains on held-to-maturity 
assets 0 55,707
Exchange rate gains, loans and other 
receivables 22,975 232,914
Total 71,154 301,178

9 Financial costs, EUR

2011 2010
Interest costs on financial leasing, 
amortised liabilities 1,752 4,631
Changes in value, currency derivatives 70,210 0
Exchange rate losses, loans and other 
receivables 129,517 33,266
Other interest costs 6,337 14
Total 207,815 37,883

10 Taxes, EUR

2011 2010
Deferred taxes 0 -730
Income tax -21,234 -8,277
Other taxes 0 -13,724
Total -21,234 -22,001
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Comparison of taxes based on the valid tax rate in Fin-
land with those recognised in the income statement:

2011 2010
Profit/loss before taxes -2,172,958 -447,554

Tax at 26% 564,969 117,988
Effect of foreign subsidiaries’ differing 
tax rates 26,104 5,844
Expenses not deductible for tax pur-
poses 2,836 -138,178
Tax-free revenue -329,896 101,233
Use of previously unrecognised tax 
losses 37,445 122,678
Tax assets not recognised for reported 
losses -269,361 -226,742
Impact of change in Finnish tax rate 0
Deferred taxes 0 730
Taxes from earlier financial periods 0 8,170
Other taxes -1,123 -13,724
Tax in income statement -21,234 -22,001

11 Earnings per share, EUR

2011 2010
Profit/loss attributable to shareholders 
of the parent company -2,104,332 -460,966
Weighted average number of shares in 
issue (1,000) 30,549 29,900
Earnings per share (undiluted) (EUR 
per share) -0.07 -0.02
Adjusted average number of shares 
considering dilution effect (1,000) 30,563 29,922
Because the Group declared a loss in 
the 2010 and 2011 financial periods, the 
dilution effect of stock options is not 
considered.

Earnings per share (diluted) (EUR per 
share) -0.07 -0.02

12 Tangible assets

Machinery and equipment, EUR 2011 2010
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 1,237,065 1,255,557
Translation difference 11,494 1,098
Increase 54,573 68,885
Decrease -88,475
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 1,303,132 1,237,065
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 1,132,962 1,136,655
Translation difference 10,856 11,000
Depreciation for the financial period 38,029 -68,166
Translation difference on depreciation 
for the financial period 0 3,988
Accumulated depreciation on decrease 0 49,485
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 1,181,847 1,132,962
Book value as at 31 Dec 121,286 104,103

Leased assets based on finance 
leasing agreements, EUR 2011 2010
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 438,451 405,549
Increase 7,695 32,902
Decrease -49,581
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 396,566 438,451
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 377,512 294,811
Depreciation for the financial period -1,031 82,701
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 376,484 377,512
Book value as at 31 Dec 20,081 60,939

Book value of machinery and equip-
ment, total as at 31 Dec, EUR 141,367 165,042

Other tangible assets, EUR 2011 2010
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 7,954 21,133
Translation difference -3,462 0
Decrease 0 -13,179
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 4,492 7,954
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 6,424 18,511
Translation difference -3,954 214
Depreciation for the financial period 932 878
Accumulated depreciation on decrease 0 -13,179
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 3,402 6,424
Book value as at 31 Dec 1,090 1,957

Balance sheet value of tangible assets 
as at 31 Dec, EUR 142,457 166,999

13 Intangible assets

Software, EUR 2011 2010
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 1,860,836 1,836,287
Translation difference 67,515 945
Increase 6,914 23,604
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 1,935,265 1,860,836
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 1,817,324 1,805,798
Translation difference 64,264 -945
Depreciation for the financial period 14,563 11,874
Translation difference on depreciation 
for the financial period 0 597
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 1,896,151 1,817,324
Book value as at 31 Dec 39,114 43,512

Immaterial rights, EUR 2011 2010
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 797,469 0
Increase* 679,579 797,469
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 1,477,048 797,469
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 0 0
Depreciation for the financial period 213,461 0
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 213,461 0
Book value as at 31 Dec 1,263,587 797,469

Balance sheet value of intangible 
assets as at 31 Dec, EUR 1,302,701 840,981

* The increase for 2010 comes exclusively from the Siltanet 
transfer of business.
The increase for 2011 comes from capitalisation of R&D costs.

Acquired business functions
No new business combinations were conducted during 
the 2011 financial period.

On 15 December 2010, Tectia corporation acquired 
the mobile authentication business of Siltanet Oy Cor-
poration and all related technology rights. This business 
transaction strengthened Tectia’s position on the mobile 
security market. Siltanet Oy was formerly a technology 
partner of Tectia, and ownership of this technology is 
considered important for the future and strategy of Tec-
tia corporation. Mobile authentication is a rapidly grow-



Tectia annual report 2011

 25

ing business, as demand for strong two-factor authenti-
cation is growing. The Tectia Mobile ID product has also 
the potential to replace physical tokens, being a cost-
effective and easy solution to deploy and use across an 
entire enterprise.

The purchase price was paid by a directed share 
issue and cash. The cash portion of the transaction 
involved purchasing a mobile authentication technology 
patent held by Siltanet Oy. The directed share issue con-
sisted of 647,059 shares. Tectia corporation also 
assumed responsibility for the capital loans granted by 
TEKES to Siltanet Oy for development of the mobile 
authentication technology and related business, total-
ling EUR 112,468. Siltanet Oy is entitled to a further 
tranche of 100,000 shares if the business growth condi-
tions specified in the transaction are fulfilled.

The acquired business would have generated net 
sales of about EUR 90,000 in the 2010 financial year if 
the business combination had been carried out at the 
beginning of the financial period. However, even if the 
business combination had been carried out at the 
beginning of the financial period, it would not have had 
a significant effect on the financial performance of the 
Group as a whole in the 2010 financial period. About 
EUR 10,000 in costs related to this transaction was rec-
ognised in 2010.

The immaterial rights acquired in the transaction will 
be depreciated over a period of 5 years.

The Siltanet acquisition 2010

Purchase price (EUR):
Cash 50,000
Directed share issue 550,000
Capital loans 112,468
Conditional instalment 85,000
Total 797,469

Acquired assets:
technology patents 50,000
customer register 298,720
technology 448,748
Total 797,469

Total purchase price 797,469
Goodwill 0
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14 Deferred tax receivables and liabilities, EUR

Finland’s corporate tax rate will change to 24.5% as of 1 January 2012 (26% until 31 
December 

1 Jan 2010

Recognised  
in income 
statement

Recognised 
under equity 31 Dec 2010

Deferred tax liabilities     

Finance leasing 1,083 0 730 730
Total 0 0 0 0

1 Jan 2011

Recognised  
in income 
statement

Recognised 
under equity 31 Dec 2011

Deferred tax liabilities     

Finance leasing 730 0 -730 0
Total 730 0 -730 0

Confirmed losses from earlier years that are not recognised as deferred tax assets by 
the Group amount to EUR 20.6 million (21.0 million). Of these, EUR 13.6 million (15 mil-
lion) is in Finland and EUR 7.0 million (6.0 million) in the USA. The Finnish confirmed 
losses will expire between 2012 and 2018, and the US confirmed losses will expire 
between 2020 and 2029. Unrecognised deferred tax assets from taxable losses 
amount to EUR 6.4 million (6.5 million). 

The Group subsidiaries have no retained earnings the repatriation of which would 
result in tax liabilities.

15 Accounts receivable, EUR

2011 2010
2,090,774 2,804,244

Accounts receivable by age, EUR

2011
Impairment  

losses Net value 2011
Non-matured 1,630,879 0 1,630,879
Matured

< 30 days 369,456 0 369,456
30–60 days 8,896 0 8,896
> 60 days 81,544 0 81,544

Total 2,090,774 0 2,090,774

Accounts receivable by age, EUR

2010
Impairment  

losses Net value 2010
Non-matured 1,998,132 0 1,998,132
Matured

< 30 days 498,992 0 498,992
30–60 days 91,837 0 91,837
> 60 days 215,282 0 215,282

Total 2,804,244 0 2,804,244

Accounts receivable by currency, EUR 2011 2010
EUR 396,823 610,781
USD 1,406,093 1,787,726
HKD 3,404 8,781
GBP 403 120,810
CHF 284,051 276,146
Total 2,090,774 2,804,244
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16 Other receivables, EUR

2011 2010
Advances paid 201,645 274,432
VAT receivables 114,326 102,910
Other current receivables 16,586 62,235
Total 332,557 439,577

17 Prepaid expenses and accrued 
income, EUR

2011 2010
Personnel-related 0 3,915
Other prepaid expenses and accrued 
income 59,826 39,136
Total 59,826 43,051

18 Investments held  
to maturity, EUR

2011 2010
Book value as at 1 Jan 2,452,744 2,520,100
Increase 0 824,168
Decrease - 2,452,744 891,524
Change, total -2,452,744 -67,356
Book value as at 31 Dec 0 2,452,744
Short-term 0 2,452,744

Gains and losses on fixed-term deposits during the 
financial period are shown in notes 8 and 9. 

19 Fair value of financial assets 
and liabilities

The table shows the book value for each financial assets 
and liabilities item; this is essentially similar to their fair 
value

Note 2011 2010
Financial assets
Other financial assets 2,414,681 1,495,684
Investments held to matu-
rity 19 0 2,452,744
Accounts receivable and 
other receivables 15,16 2,090,774 3,243,821
Currency derivatives
Total 4,505,455 7,192,249

Financial liabilities
Finance leasing liabilities 23 5,964 17,632
Accounts payable and 
other liabilities 25,27 510,079 501,171

516,043 518,803

20 Notes to equity
According to the Articles of Association, Tectia corpora-
tion has a minimum share capital of EUR 600,000 and a 
maximum share capital of EUR 2,400,000, within which 
limits the share capital may be raised or lowered without 
amending the Articles of Association. The nominal value 
of one share is EUR 0.03; hence, the minimum number 
of shares is 20 million and maximum number is 80 mil-
lion. The company has one series of shares; each share 
entitles its holder to one vote at the shareholders’ meet-
ing. The share capital of the company, registered with 
the Trade Register and fully paid up as at 31 December 
2011 was EUR 916,476.24 (31 Dec 2010: EUR 916,446.24), 
and the number of shares was 30,549,208 
(30,548,208).

Changes in the share capital:

Number of 
shares

Share  
capital Total

31 Dec 2010 30,548,208 916,446 916,446
Subscriptions under 
stock option plan I/1999 1,000 30
31 Dec 2011 30,549,208 916,476 916,476

Description of the equity reserves:
Translation differences
The translation differences fund comprise the exchange 
rate differences arising from the translation of the finan-
cial statements of the foreign subsidiaries. 

Fair value and other reserves
The item ‘Fair value and other reserves’ consists of three 
different funds: a fair value reserve for available-for-sale 
investments, a hedging reserve for changes in the fair 
value of cash flow hedging instruments, and a reserve 
for the costs of granted stock option rights. In the 2010 
and 2011 financial periods, Tectia had no saleable finan-
cial assets and did not apply hedging.
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Unrestricted invested equity fund
The unrestricted equity fund consists of the dissolved 
share premium fund formed by share subscriptions 
under option rights and includes share subscription 
prices insofar as not registered as share capital.

Fund for own shares
The fund for own shares comprises the purchase cost of 
own shares eliminated in the group consolidation of SSH 
Management Investment Oy, the holding company of 
the Group management.

Other equity fund
The item ‘Other equity fund’ is the conditional purchase 
price liability for the Siltanet acquisition.

21 Capital management
The objective in managing Group capital is to secure the 
ability to continue operating. The structure of the capi-
tal can be managed for instance through decisions con-
cerning dividends and other distribution of assets, pur-
chase of the company’s own shares and share issues. 
Capital management concerns equity recognised in the 
balance sheet. There are no requirements imposed by 
outside parties on the Group’s capital management. 

The indicators depicting the capital structure are the 
equity ratio and gearing.

Gearing
EUR 2011 2010
Interest-bearing financial liabilities 135,658 60,852
Interest-bearing receivables 0 2,452,744
Cash and cash equivalents 2,414,681 1,495,684
Net Iiabilities -2,279,023 -3,887,576

Equity total 1,078,770 3,187,281

Equity ratio 36.2 69.1
Gearing -230.0 -121.0
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22 Share-based payments

Tectia share-based payments consist of the following option plans:

Option 
plan

Option 
certificate

Release  
date Subscription period

Sub
scription 

price, EUR

Options 
not exer-

cised
Begin End

I/1999 I/1999E 05 Aug 1999 01 May 2002 01 May 2012 0.03 4,962
I/1999F 05 Aug 1999 01 Nov 2002 01 Nov 2012 0.03 3,062
I/1999G 05 Aug 1999 01 May 2003 01 May 2013 0.03 3,601
I/1999H 05 Aug 1999 01 Nov 2003 01 Nov 2013 0.03 2,600

     14,225
     

I/2000 I/2000C 22 Mar 2001 01 May 2002 01 May 2012 5.46 39,651
     39,651
     

II/2000 II/2000B 22 Mar 2001 01 May 2002 01 May 2012 13.96 1,625
II/2000C 22 Mar 2001 01 Nov 2002 01 Nov 2012 13.96 875
II/2000D 22 Mar 2001 01 May 2003 01 May 2013 13.96 875
II/2000E 22 Mar 2001 01 Nov 2003 01 Nov 2013 13.96 875
II/2000F 22 Mar 2001 01 May 2004 01 May 2014 13.96 875
II/2000G 22 Mar 2001 01 Nov 2004 01 Nov 2014 13.96 875

     6,000
     

II/2002 II/2002A 11 Apr 2002 06 Jun 2002 11 Apr 2012 0.96 1,000
II/2002B 11 Apr 2002 06 May 2003 11 Apr 2012 0.96 1,000
II/2002C 11 Apr 2002 06 May 2004 11 Apr 2012 0.96 1,000
II/2002D 11 Apr 2002 06 May 2005 11 Apr 2012 0.96 1,000

     4,000
     

III/2002 III/2002A 26 Jun 2002 06 May 2004 26 Jun 2012 0.86 499
III/2002B 26 Jun 2002 06 May 2005 26 Jun 2012 0.86 500
III/2002C 26 Jun 2002 06 May 2006 26 Jun 2012 0.86 500
III/2002D 26 Jun 2002 06 May 2007 26 Jun 2012 0.86 500

     1,999

On the balance sheet date, Tectia had 65,875 stock options outstanding (2010: 
240,039), representing 0.2% of shares and 0.2% of votes. The weighted average exer-
cise price of outstanding stock options was EUR 4.65 (2010: 0.65). The weighted 
average of the remaining subscription period was 0.6 years (2010: 1.1). The exercise 
price varies from EUR 0.03 to EUR 14.01, and the remaining subscription period from 
4 months to 2.8 years.

Changes in outstanding stock options and in weighted average subscription price:
2011 2010

Weighted 
average 
exercise  

price, EUR
Number of 

stock options

Weighted 
average 
exercise  

price, EUR
Number of 

stock options
At the beginning of the 
financial period 0.65 230,615 4.80 240,439
Stock options granted 0 0 0 0
Stock options forfeited 0 0 0.03 0
Stock options cancelled 0.03 163,740 0.03 7,124
Stock options exercised 0.03 1,000 0.03 2,700
At the end of the financial 
period 4.65 65,875 0.65 230,615
Exercisable option rights at 
the end of the financial period 4.65 65,875 0.65 230,615

The weighted average price of Tectia shares in 2011 was EUR 0.51 (0.91). 
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23 Financial liabilities

Finance leasing liabilities – minimum 
lease payments, EUR 2011 2010
Within one year 15,858 49,614
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 6,841 20,240
Total 22,699 69,855

Finance leasing liabilities – current 
value of minimum lease payments, 
EUR 2011 2010
Within one year 13,826 43,220
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 5,964 17,632
Total 19,790 60,852

Future financing costs 2,652 7,110

Total finance leasing liabilities, EUR 2011 2010
Current 13,826 43,220
Non-current 5,964 17,632

Other non-current liabilities
TEKES loan 115,687

The Group has leased office and IT equipment under 
long-term agreements. The lease agreements for IT 
equipment contain renewal options and purchase 
options at market price. The other lease agreements do 
not contain renewal or purchase options. All rents are at 
a fixed rate. The duration of the agreements is usually 
3–5 years, and the liabilities as at 31 December 2011 will 
fall due by 31 August 2014.

In the 2010 financial period, the Group took over EUR 
107,304 in TEKES equity loans in the transfer of busi-
ness from Siltanet Oy.

24 Advances received, EUR

 2011  2010
3,373,604 3,634,385

25 Accounts payable, EUR

 2011  2010
496,253 213,044

26 Accrued liabilities and 
deferred income, EUR

2011 2010
Personnel-related 599,546 691,138
Tax liabilities 32,084 16,402
Restructuring provisions 352,097 0
Other accrued liabilities and deferred 
income 8,435 166,264
Deferred rental expense benefit 61,873 82,498
Total 1,054,035 956,301

27 Other liabilities, EUR

2011 2010
Personnel-related 70,403 98,665
Finance leasing liabilities 13,826 43,220
VAT liabilities 0 5,245
Other current liabilities 148,919 97,777
Total 233,149 244,907

28 Financial risk management
The Group is exposed to financial risks in its normal 
business. The purpose of the Group’s risk management 

is to minimize negative impacts of changes on financial 
markets to Group income.

Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to 
foreign exchange risk, the most significant currency 
being USD. Transaction risks are managed based on the 
net position using, when required, forward contracts or 
options. During the period under review, the Group took 
action to hedge against exchange rate fluctuations 
against USD. At the moment, the Group is not using 
hedging accounting. Any gains or losses realised 
through hedging actions are thus recognised in profit/
loss. 

Interest rate risks
The Group has no interest-bearing debt from financial 
institutions and therefore no need for debt protection. 
The Group’s money market investments expose its cash 
flow to interest-rate risks, but the exposure is not signifi-
cant as a whole.

Market risk related to investments 
The Group’s cash reserves have been invested in accor-
dance with the policy approved by the Board of Direc-
tors. At the end of the financial reporting period, almost 
all the assets are invested in fixed income funds and 
cash in financial institutions with high credit ratings. 

Credit risks
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit 
risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales 
of products and services are made to customers with an 
appropriate credit history.

Liquidity risks
The Group has no liquidity risks, since invested funds 
which are substantial compared to the Group’s cash 
flows are available on a one-day notice.
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29 Other rental agreements

The item ‘Other rental agreements’ includes lease agree-
ments not classified as finance leasing agreements.

The Group as lessee

Non-terminable rental agreements 
for office facilities – minimum rents, 
EUR 2011 2010
Within one year 329,595 329,152
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 347,245 701,545
Total 677,020 1,030,697

Non-terminable rental agreements 
for IT services – minimum rents, EUR 2011 2010
Within one year 97,035 86,660
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 50,979 110,207
Total 148,014 196,867

Non-terminable rental agreements 
for vehicles – minimum rents, EUR 2011 2010
Within one year 32,006 58,239
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 21,170 13,635
Total 53,176 71,874

The Group rents the office facilities it uses. The duration 
of the rental agreements is usually 3 to 5 years, and nor-
mally the agreements include options to renew past the 
original termination date. The index, renewal and other 
terms and conditions differ from agreement to agree-
ment. The income statement for 2011 includes rents 
based on rental agreements totalling EUR 337,224 
(405,396). The Group sub-let part of its office facilities 
in the 2010 financial period. The rental income from 
sub-letting in 2010 was EUR 42,250. The Group does 
not currently have sub-letting agreements. 

In keeping with the Group’s IT policy, the Group rents 
out network connections, virtual machines, hard-drive 
capacity, software, and support and maintenance ser-
vices.

The Group also rents out vehicles. Rents are at fixed 
rates, and the agreement period generally 3 to 4 years. 
The income statement for 2011 includes vehicle leasing 
costs totalling EUR 76,236 (80,096).

30 Guarantees given and other 
commitments, EUR

2011 2010
Rental guarantees (pledged) 86,619 86,091

31 Group companies and related 
party transactions

Group companies Domicile

Group 
holding,  

%
Votes,  

%
Tectia corporation, Helsinki Finland
Tectia Inc., Redwood City USA 100 100
Tectia Operations Oy, 
Helsinki Finland 100 100
Tectia Ltd, Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 100
SSH Management 
Investment Oy*, Helsinki Finland 0 100
Tectia Solutions Oy, 
Helsinki** Finland 100 100
Tectia Licensing S.A R.L.** Luxembourg 100 100

* Tectia corporation holds a controlling interest in the company 
pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement.
** Founded in 2011.

Salaries and fees paid to manage-
ment and members of the Board of 
Directors, EUR 2011 2010
CEO/Jari Mielonen (until 26 Sep 2011) 162,990 217,416
 -Severance benefits upon dismissal 250,000
CEO/Tatu Ylönen (as of 26 Sep 2011) 0 0
Board/Juhani Harvela 24,000 20,000
Board/Pyry Lautsuo 25,800 23,700
Chairman of the Board/Juho Lipsanen 48,000 42,800
Board/Juha Mikkonen (until 3 Mar 
2011) 6,000 22,800
Board/Tiia Tuovinen 27,000 21,500
Board/Tomi Laamanen 0 2,800
Board/Tatu Ylönen 0 0
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Share and stock option holdings of 
Board members 

31 Dec 2011
Shares

31 Dec 2011
Stock  

options
31 Dec 2010

Shares

31 Dec 2010
Stock  

options
Pyry Lautsuo 12,500 0 12,500 0
Juho Lipsanen 21,865 0 21,865 0
Juha Mikkonen (until 3 Mar 2011) 0 4,003,000 0
Tatu Ylönen (CEO) 13,919,048 0 13,886,635 0
Total 13,953,413 0 17,924,000 0

Share and stock option holdings of 
the management group

31 Dec 2011
Shares

31 Dec 2011
Stock  

options
31 Dec 2010

Shares

31 Dec 2010
Stock  

options
Jari Mielonen 531,138*
Tero Harjula 225,653*
Jouni Leinonen 225,653*
Mikko Karvinen 225,653* 225,653* 0
Pekka Rauhala 245,653* 7,500 245,653* 22,500
Total 471,306 7,500 1,453,750 22,500

* Includes indirect ownership through SSH Management Investment Oy.

The Tectia management group and former CEO are rewarded with Group shares 
through the management’s holding company, SSH Management Investment Oy. The 
Group has no unusual pension arrangements in place for the CEO or other senior 
management.

The management holding company, SSH Management Investment Oy, owns 
1,433,750 company shares. Of these, 1,100,000 shares were subscribed in a separate 
share issue directed at the holding company. Moreover, in December 2009 SSH Man-
agement Investment Oy acquired 337,500 company shares on the open market. The 
acquisition of SSH shares was financed with a capital investment of EUR 266,640 
made by the Group management group and a loan of EUR 792,000 granted by the 
parent company of the Group. The shares will be held by the management investment 
company until it is dissolved. The holding company will be held in place as part of the 
incentive plan until autumn 2013, at which time the holding company is planned to be 
dissolved in a manner to be determined later. The interest rate on the loan granted by 
the parent company is the 12-month Euribor rate plus a margin of 0.65 percentage 

points. Interest is paid in case of dividend, otherwise interest is capitalised annually. 
The loan will be repaid by the date when the holding company is dissolved at the lat-
est. The capital may be repaid in whole or in part at an earlier date. A repayment of 
EUR 72,000 on the loan was made after the capital return in March 2010. Tectia cor-
poration may call in the loan prematurely if SSH Management Investment Oy violates 
the terms of the loan agreement. The shares in the parent company held by the hold-
ing company form the security for the loan pursuant to the loan agreement. The AGM 
of Tectia corporation on 3 March 2010 decided to authorise the Board of Directors to 
accept the company’s own shares pledged as security.

As at 31 December 2011, the CEO and members of the Board of Directors of Tectia 
owned 45.7% (63.9%) of the shares and votes in Tectia, either directly or indirectly 
through companies they own. The Board members and CEO have no option rights. 

Management group members apart from the CEO directly or indirectly held about 
1.5% (3.0%) of company shares and have 7,500 (22,500) option rights between them.

Salaries and fees paid to the management are also discussed in the annual report 
(p. 5). 

Related party transactions
Clausal Computing Oy, a company wholly owned by Tatu Ylönen, CEO of Tectia cor-
poration, supplied Tectia corporation with R&D services worth EUR 0.1 million in the 
course of the year 2011. There were no other essential related party transactions dur-
ing the period under review.

32 Events after the balance sheet date
A significant financial institution in the UK increased its investment in SSH technology 
by ordering software licenses and maintenance services for EUR 0.9 million in all. The 
software and licenses under this order will be delivered and recognised as income in 
the first quarter of 2012, and the maintenance sales will be recognised during the 2012 
financial period.

The company management does not know of any other essential events after the 
balance sheet date that would have affected the financial situation of the company.
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Parent company financial statement
Parent company income statement

INCOME STATEMENT 

EUR Note 1 Jan–31 Dec 2011 1 Jan–31 Dec 2010

NET SALES 1 4,094,453.36 5,268,033.43

Purchasing and production costs 139,771.60 198,656.23

GROSS MARGIN 3,954,681.76 5,069,377.20

R&D costs 2, 6 2,540,233.67 2,961,109.61
Sales and marketing costs 2, 6 2,326,962.41 1,745,545.69
Administrative costs 2, 6 1,587,410.80 1,810,038.00
Other operating income 7 -1,270,368.86 483,104.02

 
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS -1,229,556.25 -1,674,271.63

Financial income and costs 8
Interest revenue and other financing income 72,996.66 279 466,88
Interest costs and other financing costs 118,171.09 14 727,61

Financial income and costs, total -45,174.43 264,739.27

PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY 
ITEMS

-1,274,730.68 -1,409,532.36

Extraordinary items
Extraordinary income 9 255,093.97 0

PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS 
AND TAXES

-1,019,636.71 -1,409,532.36

PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES -1,019,636.71 -1,409,532.36

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD -1,019,636.71 -1,409,532.36

Parent company balance sheet

BALANCE SHEET

EUR Note 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 9

Immaterial rights 1,294,804.26 833,087.56
Intangible assets, total 1,294,804.26 833,087.56

Tangible assets 9
Machinery and equipment 105,235.81 84,616.45

Tangible assets, total 106,235.81 84,616.45

Investments
Shares in Group companies 9 104,309.18 100,841.75
Other shares 11,000.00 11,000.00

Investments total 115,309.18 111,841.75

NON-CURRENT ASSETS,TOTAL 1,515,349.25 1,029,545.76

Non-current receivables
Receivables from Group companies 10 720,000.00 769,538.32

Non-current receivables, total 720,000.00 769,538.32

Current receivables
Accounts receivable 102,027.09 300,841.98
Receivables from Group companies 10 110,197.17 170,645.42
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 11 29,401.98 11,495.64
Other receivables 12 101,312.31 244,183.12

Current receivables, total 342,938.55 727,166.16

Financial instruments
Other securities 13 0.00 1,752,744.34

Cash in hand and bank deposits 1,992,241.76 807,479.61

CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL 3,055,180.31 4,056,928.43

ASSETS, TOTAL 4,570,529.56 5,086,474.19
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BALANCE SHEET

EUR Note 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY 14
Share capital 916,476.24 916,446.24
Unrestricted invested equity fund 6,072,472.35 6,072,472.35
Retained profit/loss -3,015,994.69 -1,606,462.33
Profit/loss for the financial period -1,019,636.71 -1,409,532.36
EQUITY, TOTAL 2,953,317.19 3,972,923.90

APPROPRIATIONS
Depreciation difference 0.00 4,166.66

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Advances received 82,638.11 126,482.06
Accounts payable 431,082.82 175,521.29
Accrued expenses and deferred income 15 1,030,387.51 706,232.30
Other liabilities 16 73,103.93 101,147.98

Current liabilities, total 1,617,212.37 1,109,383.63

LIABILITIES TOTAL 1,617,212.37 1,113,550.29

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES, TOTAL 4,570,529.56 5,086,474.19

Parent company cash flow statement

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EUR 1 Jan–31 Dec 2011 1 Jan–31 Dec 2010

Cash flow from business operations
Sales revenue 4,453,143.92 5,414,753.52
Revenue from other business operations 1,535.97 48,350.68
Costs of business operations -5,547,342.59 -6,960,285.73
Cash flow from business operations before financial 
items and taxes

-1,092,662.70 -1,497,181.53

Interest and payments on other financial costs of 
business operations

-20,179.26 -14,618.55

Interest and other financial revenue from business 
operations

-37,753.30 58,476.74

Cash flow from business operations -1,150,595.26 1,453,323.34

Cash flow from investing activities
Investments in tangible and intangible assets -733,562.62 -198,055.94
Loans granted 0.00 -49,538.32
Repayment on loan receivables 49,538.32 72,000.00
Other investments -3,467.43 0.00

Cash flow from investing activities -687,491.73 -175,594.26

Cash flow from financing activities
Current investments 1,752,744.34 767,355.96
Capital loan repayment 1,050,000.00 0.00
Share subscriptions 30.00 81.00
Group contribution received 220,074.80 0.00
Return of capital 0.00 -1,423,047.45

Cash flow from financing activities 3,022,849.14 -655,610.49

Change in liquid assets 1,184,762.15 -2,284,528.09

Liquid assets at beginning of financial period  807,479.61 3,092,007.70
Change in liquid assets 1,184,762.15 -2,284,528.09

Liquid assets at end of financial period 1,992,241.76 807,479.61
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Accounting principles
The financial statement of the parent company, Tectia 
corporation, is drawn up in accordance with the Finnish 
Accounting Standards. Figures are given to an accuracy 
of one cent (EUR 0.01). All items in the balance sheet 
are recognised at original acquisition cost. Information 
on financial risk management is presented in the con-
solidated financial statement.

Principles of revenue recognition
Revenue is principally recognised in net sales once 
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, 
an agreement has been signed with the customer or the 
customer has submitted a written order, and it has been 
assured that the customer is solvent. Revenue from ser-
vices rendered under maintenance agreements are 
amortised across the agreement period. 

Apportioning of costs to functions
Costs are apportioned to functions according to the 
matching principle. 

Rental and leasing agreements
The parent company has rental and leasing agreements 
principally concerning IT services, vehicles and other 
assets. Rents and leasing payments paid pursuant to 
these agreements are recognised as costs over the 
rental or leasing period under ‘Other operating costs’. 
Assets leased under finance leasing agreements and 
liabilities derived from these are not recognised in the 
parent company balance sheet. 

Income tax
The income tax in the income statement comprises 
direct taxes based on the taxable profit for the financial 
period and adjustments to taxes on previous financial 
periods. The parent company does not recognise 

deferred tax receivables or liabilities in its financial 
statement. The parent company has confirmed losses of 
EUR 13.6 million (14.2 million) that have not been recog-
nised as deferred tax receivables.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are recognised in the balance sheet at 
acquisition cost less planned depreciation and any 
impairments. Planned depreciations are calculated on a 
straight-line basis according to the economic life of each 
asset category. 

The asset categories and their depreciation periods 
are:

Machinery and equipment 5 years from month of 
acquisition

Computer hardware 3 years from month of 
acquisition

Immaterial rights 5 years from year of acquisition
R&D expenses 5 years from year of 

capitalisation
Other capitalised expenditure 5 years from year of 

capitalisation
Major renovations of rental 
premises

Length of the rental agreement, 
though no more than 7 years, 
from year of capitalisation

Accumulated depreciation difference, i.e. the difference 
between planned depreciation and depreciation 
deducted for taxation purposes, is recognised as a sep-
arate item under equity and liabilities in the balance 
sheet. In the consolidated financial statement, the 
depreciation difference less deferred tax liabilities is 
recognised under retained earnings under equity.

Research and product development costs 
R&D costs are recognised as costs in the financial 
period in which they were occurred except for those 

product development costs which are capitalised once 
certain criteria have been met. Capitalised development 
expenses are depreciated systematically over their use-
ful lives.

Financial securities
Financial securities include items such as investments in 
interest funds. They mainly comprise commercial papers 
and fixed-term deposits, measured at acquisition cost 
less any impairment.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are rec-
ognised at the exchange rate on the transaction date. 
Outstanding receivables and liabilities in foreign curren-
cies are recognised using the exchange rates on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange rate gains and losses on 
actual business operations are considered sales adjust-
ment items or adjustment items to materials and ser-
vices. Exchange rate gains and losses on financing 
activities are recognised offset under income from and/
or costs of financing activities. 

Option rights
Employees of the parent company and its subsidiaries 
have been granted option rights. The option rights enti-
tle their holders to subscribe shares in the parent com-
pany at a fixed subscription price specified in the terms 
of the option plan. No costs are recognised in the 
income statement or balance sheet regarding the grant-
ing of option rights. With regard to option plans which 
closed while the old Companies Act was still in effect 
(before 1 September 2006), when an employee exer-
cises option rights under those plans, the payments 
received for the subscriptions are recognised as equity 
under the unrestricted equity fund.

Notes to the parent company financial statements
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1 Net sales by market area, EUR

2011 2010
Finland 377,521 465,355
Rest of Europe 844,393 690,156
North America 1,894,281 3,384,984
Other 978,258 727,538
Total 4,094,453 5,268,033

2 Operating costs

Other operating costs 2011 2010
Total 1,396,496.56 3,046,436

Auditor’s fees 
•	 Auditor’s fees by service category were as follows:
•	 Audit: EUR 18,000.00 (18,000.00)

Assignments referred to in section 1(1) paragraph 2 of 
the Auditing Act: 
•	 Tax counselling: EUR 10,553.40 (0.00)
•	 Other services: EUR 7,326.50 (3,670.00)

Notes to the income statement

3 Personnel costs and average 
number of employees

Personnel costs, EUR 2011 2010
Wages and salaries 3,119,733 3,134,827
Pension costs 504,979 554,949
Other ancillary personnel costs 164,564 55,787
Total 3,789,277 3,745,563

2011 2010
Average number of employees 44 49

4 Personnel distribution by 
business area at the end of the 
financial period

2011 2010
Research and development 24 27
Sales and marketing 6 11
Administration 5 11
Total 35 49

5 Salaries and fees paid to 
management and members of the 
Board of Directors, EUR
See note 32 to the consolidated financial statement.

6 Depreciation and impairment, EUR

2011 2010
On immaterial rights 180,239 10,627
On machinery and equipment 25,196 59,496
Total 251,226 70,123

No impairments were recognised in 2010 or 2011.

7 Other operating income and 
costs
Other operating income for 2011 comprises an income 
item of EUR 1,536. Other operating costs for 2011 
includes written-off bad debts from fully-owned subsid-
iaries to a total of EUR 1,268,833.

Other operating income for 2010 comprised rental 
income of EUR 48,351. Other operating costs for 2010 
included written-off bad debts from fully-owned subsid-
iaries to a total of EUR 531,455.

8 Financing income and costs, EUR

2011 2010
Interest revenue 18,425 17,965
Revenue from financial securities 42,770 49,749
Exchange rate gains and losses (net) -102,804 197,040
Interest costs -3,566 0
Total -45,174 264,739

9 Extraordinary income, EUR

2011 2010
Group contribution,  
Tectia Operations Oy 255,093 0
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Notes to the balance sheet
10 Non-current assets and 
other long-term investments, EUR

Immaterial rights 2011 2010
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 2,713,422 1,900,197
Increase 687,747 813,225
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 3,401,169 2,713,422

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 1,880,334 1,869,708
Depreciation for the financial period 226,031 10,627
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 2,106,365 1,880,334
Book value as at 31 Dec 1,294,804 833,088

Machinery and equipment
Acquisition cost as at 1 Jan 1,127,672 1,085,842
Increase 49,982 41,831
Acquisition cost as at 31 Dec 1,177,654 1,127,672

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 Jan 1,043,056 983,560
Depreciation for the financial period 29,363 59,496
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Dec 1,072,419 1,043,056
Book value as at 31 Dec 105,236 84,616

Investments  
Book value as at 1 Jan 111,842 111,842
Increase 3,467 0
Book value as at 31 Dec 115,309 111,842

11 Parent company receivables 
from Group companies, EUR

2011 2010
Accounts receivable 110,197 170,645
Loan receivables 720,000 769,538
Total 830,197 940,183

12 Prepaid expenses and accrued 
income, EUR

2011 2010
Interest receivables 28,561 10,655
Personnel-related 841 841
Total 29,402 11,496

13 Other receivables, EUR

2011 2010
Advances paid 72,388 172,968
VAT receivables 28,812 4,706
Other current receivables 112 66,510
Total 101,312 244,183

14 Other securities, EUR

Financial securities 2011 2010
Book value as at 1 Jan 1,752,744 2,520,100
Net increase/decrease -1,752,744 -767,356
Book value as at 31 Dec 0 1,752,744
Current 0 1,752,744

At the end of 2010, the held-to-maturity investments 
comprised fixed-term deposits.

15 Equity, EUR

2011 2010
Share capital as at 1 Jan 916,446 896,953
Increase in share capital 30 19,493
Share capital as at 31 Dec 916,476 916,446

Unrestricted invested equity fund as at 
1 Jan 6,072,472 7,036,806
Return of capital 0 -1,494,922
Subscription of shares 0 530,588
Unrestricted invested equity fund as at 
31 Dec 6,072,472 6,072,472

Retained earnings -3,015,994 -1,606,462
Profit/loss for the financial period -1,019,637 -1,409,532

Equity total 2,953,317 3,972,924

Statement on distributable funds, EUR 2011 2010
Retained earnings -3,015,994 -1,606,462
Profit/loss for the financial period -1,019,637 -1,409,532
Unrestricted invested equity fund 6,072,472 6,072,472
Total 2,036,841 3,056,478

16 Accrued liabilities and 
deferred income, EUR

2011 2010
Personnel-related 829,700 508,764
Other accrued liabilities and  
deferred income 200,687 197,468
Total 1,030,387 706,232
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17 Other liabilities, EUR

2011 2010
Personnel-related 70,305 101,148
VAT liabilities 2,799 0
Total 73,104 101,148

18 Other commitments, EUR

Non-terminable rental agreements for office facilities – future 
rent payment

2011 2010
Within one year 202,654 185,620
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 241,990 556,859
Total 444,644 742,478

The earliest possible termination date for the rental 
agreement on the office facilities is 30 June 2013.

Non-terminable rental agreements for IT services – future 
rent payments
IT services 2011 2010
Within one year 97,035 86,660
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 50,979 110,207
Total 148,014 196,867

Non-terminable rental agreements for vehicles – future rent 
payments

2011 2010
Within one year 32,006 46,828
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 21,170 13,635
Total 53,177 60,463

Non-terminable rental agreements for other assets – future 
rent payments

2011 2010
Within one year 13,826 43,220
Within more than one year but no 
more than 5 years 5,964 17,632
Total 19,790 60,852

Guarantees given
2011 2010

Rental guarantees (pledged) 69,381 64,425

19 Group companies

Group companies Domicile

Group 
holding,  

%
Votes,  

%
Tectia corporation, 
Helsinki Finland
Tectia Inc., Redwood 
City USA 100 100
Tectia Operations Oy, 
Helsinki Finland 100 100
Tectia Ltd, Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 100
Tectia Licensing S.A R.L. Luxembourg 100 100
SSH Management 
Investment Oy, Helsinki Finland 0 100
Tectia Solutions Oy, 
Helsinki Finland 100 100
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Signatures to the board of directors report and 
financial statement

Helsinki, 14th February 2012

Juho Lipsanen	 Juhani Harvela
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pyry Lautsuo	 Tiia Tuovinen

Tatu Ylönen
CEO

Auditor’s note
We have today issued an auditors’ report based on our audit.

Helsinki, 28th February 2012

KPMG Oy Ab

Kirsi Jantunen
APA
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To the Annual General Meeting of 
Tectia Corporation
We have audited the accounting records, the financial 
statements, the report of the Board of Directors, and 
the administration of Tectia Corporation for the year 
ended December 31, 2011. The financial statements com-
prise the consolidated balance sheet, comprehensive 
income statement, statement of changes in equity and 
cash flow statement, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, as well as the parent company’s 
balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement 
and notes to the financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of 
Directors and the Managing 
Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are 
responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
as adopted by the EU, as well as for the preparation of 
financial statements and the report of the Board of 
Directors that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with the laws and regulations governing the preparation 
of the financial statements and the report of the Board 
of Directors in Finland. The Board of Directors is respon-
sible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of 
the company’s accounts and finances, and the Manag-
ing Director shall see to it that the accounts of the com-
pany are in compliance with the law and that its financial 
affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner.

Auditor’s report
This document is an English translation of the Finnish auditor’s report. Only the Finnish version of the report is legally binding.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the finan-
cial statements, on the consolidated financial state-
ments and on the report of the Board of Directors 
based on our audit. The Auditing Act requires that we 
comply with the requirements of professional ethics. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with good auditing 
practice in Finland. Good auditing practice requires that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements and 
the report of the Board of Directors are free from mate-
rial misstatement, and whether the members of the 
Board of Directors of the parent company or the Man-
aging Director are guilty of an act or negligence which 
may result in liability in damages towards the company 
or have violated the Limited Liability Companies Act or 
the articles of association of the company. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements and the report of the Board of 
Directors. The procedures selected depend on the audi-
tor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of 
financial statements and report of the Board of Direc-
tors that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin-
ion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal con-
trol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriate-
ness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, finan-
cial performance, and cash flows of the group in accor-
dance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU. 

Opinion on the company’s financial 
statements and the report of the 
Board of Directors
In our opinion, the financial statements and the report 
of the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of 
both the consolidated and the parent company’s finan-
cial performance and financial position in accordance 
with the laws and regulations governing the preparation 
of the financial statements and the report of the Board 
of Directors in Finland. The information in the report of 
the Board of Directors is consistent with the information 
in the financial statements.

Helsinki, 28 February 2012
KPMG OY AB

KIRSI JANTUNEN
Authorized Public Accountant
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